
LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thOctober 28, 2019

Present: Chair Bennett, D. Andersen, J. Brown, R. Haak, CEOA. Backus, Zoning Assistant Julie
Holtje, Attorney J. Campbell & Secretary, A. Houk.    

Excused:  J. Palmer, J. Sparling, L. Willoughby.  

Agenda:   

1)  Approve themeeting minutes – July22, 2019

2)  Camp Stella Maris – 4395EastLakeRoad, Livonia, NY
Concept.  

3)  Bridge Creek Vineyard – WestLakeRoad, Livonia, NY
Concept.  

4)  Prometheus Farm & Market – 5804Decker Road, Livonia, NY
SitePlan.  

Chair Bennett opened themeeting at7:00p.m.   

1) Approve Meeting Minutes forJuly22, 2019.  ChairR. Bennett asked foramotion toapprove.   
M/2/C (R. Haak/D. Andersen) approved assubmitted.  Carried 4-0

2)  Camp Stella Maris – 4395EastLakeRoad, Livonia, NY

ChairR. Bennett asked JohnQuinlivan, Executive Director tocome forward toexplain their
proposal fortheoutside Chapel & Amphitheater.  J. Quinlivan stated thatoneoftheirBoard
Members, Brian Denney wasalsopresent.  They areproposing theconstruction ofanoutdoor
Amphitheater, stage, fence andbathroom.  TheCamp started 94years ago, in1937.  St. Jude’s
Chapel wasbuiltatthattime, andserved theirneeds formany years.  Inthe1990’sthecamps
population grewandtheywereforced toholdtheservices outside, having thechildren sitting on
theground.  Over thepast twoyears, theyhave assessed theirgrowth anddetermined theneed
foranoutdoor Chapel.  D. Andersen asked forclarification oftheproject site.  J. Quinlivan
stated thatitwillbelocated near thecorner areaofEastLake & VanZandt Roads, eastofthe
parking area.  Theproject consists offourelements, with theAmphitheater being themainfocus.   
Theterrace seating wasdesigned byAlRoome, ofAlandscape & Design.  Itwillbeconstructed
using timber bench seating, withgravel andmulchontopofthat.  Theydonotanticipate anyrun
offfromthat typeofconstruction.   Atwo-stallbathroom willbebuiltnext toSt. Jude’sChapel
tobeusedduring Mass.  Afoundation would bedug, andsewer lineswould beinstalled that
would tieintothemainsewer onEastLakeRoad.  Plumbing stillexists fromtheNun’shouse
thatwastoredownin2006, which theywould tieback into.  

1



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thOctober 28, 2019

Theywillrunwater andelectricity fromtheexisting bathrooms, which areapproximately 50’  
away.  AStage/Alterwould bebuiltwith thesameroof lineasSt. Jude’sChapel, which would
beconstructed withatimber frame. Thelastphase would beafence located between thecreek
andVanZandt road.  They arerequesting an8’ tallfence, tostopdistraction ofchildren sitting in
theAmphitheater.  Thiswillalsohelpwiththesound ofcars traveling by, andprovide privacy
fortheworship space.  They havecontact LuEngineers tohelp themprovide astorm water and
erosion plan.  Obtaining thisplan isaboutamonth away.  Theywillhavecampers coming in
June, which puts theirbuilding schedule very limited.  They areasking forapproval tobegin
building prior tothestorm water management plan iscomplete.  Theywould liketostartonthe
foundation, plumbing andtheTerrace work, prior tothestorm water report.  CEOA. Backus
stated thatifthePlanning Board wasinclined togrant approval, acondition maybethat the
storm water report, andnoise concerns would beaddressed prior toanybuilding.  CEOA.  
Backus asiftheywere intending toholdoutdoor concerts.  J. Quinlivan stated therearenoplans
forconcerts ortheatrical events, thisareawillbedesignated asaworship space.  ChairR.  
Bennett stated that thisapplication would beconsidered amodification totheSitePlan.  CEOA.  
Backus stated that thesiteismostly pervious, with theexception ofthesmall roofandthe
bathrooms.  Therewillnotbealotofchange intherunoff.  Erosion control needs tobe
accounted for, especially with thecreek running intoamajor tributary.  ChairR. Bennett asked
what thetotalareaofdisturbance would be.  CEOA. Backus stated itwillbelessthananacre.   
D. Andersen asked forthetiming ofwhen theproject would becomplete.  J. Quinlivan stated the
middleofJune, prior tocamp starting.  D. Andersen stated thatitwillbeanicecomplement to
thecamp.    

ChairR. Bennett asked foramotion toapprove themodification toSitePlan, conditional upon
theapproval ofthestorm watermanagement & erosion control. TheFence willrequire Zoning
Board ofapproval foraVariance.  ThePlanning Board recommends infavoroftheFence.    
Motion toapprove: M/2/C (R. Haak/J. Brown) Carried 4-0

3)  Bridge Creek Vineyard – WestLakeRoad, Livonia, NY

ChairR. Bennett asked Justin Bruckel, & JohnSciarabba ofLandTech tocomeforward to
explain theproposed concept plan.  J. Sciarabba stated that theyattended aTown Board Meeting
acouple ofweeks agotorequest are-Zoning forthisproject.  J. Sciarabba stated that theTown
Board looked favorably ontheconcept, butrequested aconceptual Planning Board review ofthe
project.  Thesiteis59+ acres located ontheeastsideofWestLakeRoad, justnorthofthe
Lakeville Airport, andatthenorth endofConesus Lake.  Theproject siteisapproximately 30
acres located tothenorthofJ. Bruckel newlybuilthome.  ItisZoned Agricultural Residential
Conservation (ARC-3) District, buthasbeenmaintained primarily asagricultural formanyyears.   
Thesitehasaccess topublic water, sanitary sewerandelectric.  Theyplantodevelop avineyard,  
whichwill feature apremier, stateofthearteventcenter, awineproduction facility andcottage
stylevillas thatwillbeforrent.  Theywillserve weddings, event planners, andwineenthusiasts
tocreate aunique andengaging experience foralltheir customers.    

Phase oneoftheproject will include theconstruction ofa9000Sq. Ft. event center withawalk
outbasement.  Themainfloorwillbeused forawine tasting bar, amerchandise area, anddeck

2



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thOctober 28, 2019

withviewsofConesus lake.  Thewalkoutbasement willbeused forsmaller events suchas
bridal/bachelor parties, retirement, birthday andfamily reunions, etc.  Thisareawill
accommodate upto100people.  Until thisbuilding starts generating income, theymayusethe
downstairs areafortheproduction area.  Initially, theywillofferanareaontopofthehillwhere
alarger, enclosed tentcanbeerected toaccommodate upto300people.  Theywillendtheair
stripatJ. Bruckel’sdriveway, sonoairplanes willbeactive beyond thatpoint.  

Also incorporated intophase one, willbetheconstruction ofa5000Sq. Ft. production facility.  
Thiswillallow themtoproduce quality wines thatcanbeenjoyed whilevisiting, ortotake
home.  Theywillalso integrate aflatareatotheeastoftheevent center, positioned downhill.   
Thisareawill include apergola facing westback towards theevent center, andwillbeused for
wedding ceremonies, livemusic andpicnics.  Mostmusicwillbeplayed within theevent center
ortent, butonoccasion therewillbeoutside music forpeople toenjoy.    

Phase twooftheproject will include theconstruction ofapproximately 15on-sitecottages.  The
Cottages willbe2- 1100Sq. Ftunits together.  Theywillbeusedforweek dayandweekend
rentals, notasseveral month rentals.  R. Haak askedifpeople could rent thecottages thatweren’t
having anevent there.  J. Sciarabba stated thatanyone canstay, thecottages areforgetaway
weekends orbed & breakfast.  Itwillalso include anadditional 1.5-acrepond thatwillserve not
onlyfordrainage purposes, butasabackdrop forthecottages.  When Bridge Creek Vineyards is
upandrunning, itwillaidincreating approximately 15newjobsassociated withphase one.   
Once phase twoiscomplete, itwillofferapproximately 10- 20additional jobs.  Thewine tasting
roomwillbeopen5daysaweek from11amto5pm, with longer hours ontheweekends.  The
event spacewillbeopen from4pm-9pm, with theweekends being heavy, with theoccasional 1- 
2events during theweek.    

Thesiteislocated onaState roadandhasaccess toallpublic utilities.  Sewers havebeenrunup
fromPebble Beach Road, andthere iswater onthesite.  Theplan isintheinitial stage andprior
tocompleting further Engineering studies, theywould liketoobtain re-zoning approval first.   
Theyarerequesting that thenorthern portion oftheparcel bere-zoned toGateway Commercial.   
They intend toleaveabuffer thatwould remain ARC-3near thePebble Beach area.    

J. Brown loves theidea, butfeels thatwhat thecurrent Zoning isnow, isfarfromwhat theyare
proposing.  Sheisconcerned about thepeople whocurrently liveinthatarea.  J. Sciarabba stated
thatJ. Bruckel haswentdoortodoor intheneighborhood, andhanded outpamphlets explaining
their concept.  Heheldapartyathishouse withmany people fromPebble Beach andthearea,  
showing themtheirplans.  TheTown Board willalsoholdaPublic Hearing during there-zoning
process, whichwillallow thepublic tovoice anyconcerns.  Their planwillbesimilar totheDeer
RunWinery across theroad.  R. Haak stated that thisisabigger scope thanwhat islocated
across thestreet.  Attorney J. Campbell stated thattheconcerns attheTown Board levelare
when there isre-zoning, there isachange inuseforthatarea.  Commercial Districts allow such
usesasa300roomHotel.  There would bemeasures placed torestrict those typesof
development.  Itwould likelyresult insome Deedrestrictions favoring theTownofLivonia.  It
would become partofthechainoftitleforthatwhole property, thatwould limit itsusetoprevent
certain characteristics theTown Board would beconcerned about.  Someofthose concerns will
beoffthetablewhen itreaches thePlanning Board forSitePlanconsideration.  TheTown Board

3



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thOctober 28, 2019

isinterested inthePlanning Boards thoughts inthat regard.  Toensure theyareaware ofany
concerns theyshould beaware ofwhen considering there-zoning process.  J. Brown asked about
aConditional UsePermit.  Attorney J. Campbell stated thataConditional orUsePermit assumes
that theuseispermitted.  Itwould need tobeapermitted usewithin thecurrent district ofARC-3
inorder tobeconsidered aoption.  Theoptions arethat theZoning district boundaries are
changed orrequire aUseVariance, which isvirtually unobtainable.  TheTown Board isthe
appropriate avenue todetermine ifthistypeofuseisappropriate inthisarea.  J. Brown feltthat
other venues withsimilar plans, (TwinSilo’s & Wingate Barn) obtained aConditional Use
Permit.  ChairR. Bennett stated thatwith those venues, therewerepre-existing structures andAg

Farm were looking toretain those structures asanalternative use.  Itisasimilar situation
regarding theconcerns ofthesound, hoursofoperation anddisturbance atnight.  Wewillwant
toputsimilar restrictions aswith those venues.  Attorney J. Campbell stated thatwilldefinitely
beanimportant partoftheSitePlanreview, toconsider noise, hoursofoperation anddrainage,  
duetotheproximity totributaries that flowtoConesus Lake.  ChairR. Bennett stated thathe
would lookataDeed restriction between thisproperty andPebble Beach, tokeep theresidential
buffer.  Wehave learned fromtheHook & Spoon whatcanhappen when youputmusic onthe
Lake.  TheTown Board islooking forthePlanning Boards feedback fromaPlanning, SitePlan
prospective.  There-zoning iscompletely atthediscretion oftheTown Board.   J. Sciarabba
stated that theyarefullyaware oftheconcern with thenoise andwillbelimiting thehoursof
operation toensure thesound concerns areaddressed.  ChairR. Bennett stated that theatthelast
meeting withBridge Creek Vineyard, thePlanning Board feltitwasareasonably good idea.   
Therewillbethesame typeofconditions placed onthisplan, asonsimilar event centers.  R.  
Haak & J. Brown share concerns about theneighbors.  R. Haak stated that theCottages need to
befurther reviewed.  J. Sciarabba asked what theconcerns were regarding theCottages.   
Attorney J. Campbell stated that there hasbeenalotofsensitivity around short termrentals,  
especially inthePebble Beach area.  Alotofconcerns canbeaddressed withproper
management.  CEOA. Backus stated thatsomeoftheconcerns withshort termrentals were
related toabsent landlords.  J. Bruckel stated that theywould bemonitored nightly, ashelives
near thesite.  D. Andersen stated that theCottages would answer aneed inthearea.  Other than
renting onoraround theLake, there istheRodeway InninLakeville oraHampton Innlocated in
Geneseo.  
Attorney J. Campbell alsoclarified inregards totheConditional UsePermit inlieuofthere- 
zoning.  Although that isnotapplicable todotheConditional UsePermit inplaceofthere- 
zoning, thisapproval process maystill involve therequirement ofaConditional UsePermit.   
ChairR. Bennett stated that theconsensus isthat, thePlanning Board would likeameans and
method tobeabletoregulate.  Attorney J. Campbell stated thatCEOA. Backus, andthe
Building & Zoning Department willsummarize thePlanning Boards thoughts, andforward a
memo totheTown Board ontheirbehalf.  Theapplication willrequire aPublic Hearing
regarding there-zoning.  

4)  Prometheus Farm & Market – 5804Decker Road, Livonia, NY

ChairR. Bennett asked Robert Gallagher andAttorney Steven Sessler tocome forward.   
Attorney S. Sessler stated that theywerehere todiscuss theusetowhat iscurrently afarm
located inanARC-3District.  Theyarerequesting tofurther thefarmoperation under the

4



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thOctober 28, 2019

Agricultural andMarket law, aswellasunder the “Right toFarm” provisions oftheTown Code.   
There ison-sitefarmproduction taking place andthisdealswithbothmarketing andpublic
access tocertain partsofthefarmoperation, known asAgritourism.  Thesaleofmanyofthe
products produced onthefarm, aswellasproducts andvalues thatareenhanced bypreparation
suchwaswashing andcooking.  They arehere todiscuss andrequest what information the
Planning Board would liketoseeinthePreliminary SitePlan.  R. Gallagher stated that theyown
twoproperties, located at5804and5816Decker Road.  Botharelocated within theARC-3
District.  Apermitted usewithin thisdistrict isaFarm operation.  Asafarmoperation, itconsists
ofAgricultural practices asstated inChapter 71oftheTownofLivonia Code, which speaks of
thegenerally accepted Agricultural practices, andrefers totheAg & Markets publication 25
AA301.  Thefarmconsists ofaresidence, garden & barn located onthe5816Decker Road
parcel.  Located at5804Decker Road, there isanewly constructed AgBuilding, deck, and
parking lotwithdriveways.  They hope tobuildaGreenhouse & Restroom nextyear.  They are
deciding whether tobuildacompost typerestroom, orseptic.  They haveon-site, araised bed
drainage fieldtoaccommodate, ifneeded.  Hehasconsulted withKevinDyke, fromthe
Department ofHealth regarding theideas fortheproposed restroom.  Asaccepted Farming
practices, theywillhaveproduction, processing, direct marketing andAgritourism, whichwill
relate toagriculture.  ChairR. Bennett asked Attorney J. Campbell what thePlanning Boards
jurisdiction would be.  Attorney J. Campbell stated thatitisaverycomplex areaofthelaw.  We
have reviewed theTown Code inrelation totheARC-3District.  Attorney S. Sessler referred to
the “Right toFarm” law, which isexternal fromtheTown’sZoning Code.  The “Right toFarm”  
shows themindset ofwhat theBoard’sshould bethinking andanalyzing with thistypeoffarm
operation.  Attorney J. Campbell stated that theyhavealsoreviewed theAg & Market laws.  At
thistime, thisapplication isnotmotivated under Ag & Markets law, duetoitnotyetmeeting
theircriteria.  Wewillbeproceeding ahead with thelocalCode, andthenunder theAg &  
Markets law.  ThegoalofAg & Market istopromote agriculture asabusiness.  Thepromotion
isnot intended tobeunreasonably restrictive atthelocal level.  Itdoesn’tmean thathealth,  
safety & welfare cannot beregulated, orthatyoucan’thaveaSitePlanreview.  After reviewing
withCEOA. Backus, theconclusion ofwhat theywould liketodo, constitutes thekindof
activity thatwould beanticipated under theAg & Market aspartofafarmoperation, including
theAgritourism aspect.  From theSitePlanstand point, thisBoard willbetasked with looking at
items suchassafety andparking.  Thismeeting isintended toobtain anyconcerns orquestions
theBoard mayhaveprior tothemreturning foraformal SitePlanapplication.    

Attorney S. Sessler stated thatonthisfarmthere isproduction currently taking place.  Theyare
growing fruitsandvegetables, eggs, cutflowers, ornamental plants andChristmas trees.  They
arealsoplanning toimplement processing, suchascooking, washing andpacking ofthe
production items.   Thecooking isregulated bytheDepartment ofHealth, which theyhavebeen
incontact withtodiscuss akitchen facility, andtheirvision.  Therewillbedirect marketing and
on-sitesales.  When people cometothefarm, theycanvisitanimals, andviewwhere the
products forsaleweregrown.  Inorder togetpeople tovisit, youneed tohavesome Agritourism
events.  Itcould beacornmaze, Halloween eventsuchasahayride, workshops todemonstrate
howitems grown onthefarmcould becooked orpreserved.  They anticipate hoursofoperation
tobelimited to10amto6pm.  There would benoovernight sales.  Theymayhaveanovernight
event suchasaHalloween orChristmas program.  Therewillbelimited seasons ofoperation due
totheweather.  They anticipated regular hours fromMaythrough October.  CSADistribution

5



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thOctober 28, 2019

would beyear-round.  R. Gallagher explained thatCSAdistribution iscommunity supported
agriculture.  People thathaveaninterest inthefarmwould putmoney upfront asacommitment
tosupport thefarm.  There aredifferent models suchastheperson would receive abasket of
vegetables when theyareharvested, ortheycouldcome inandpickwhat theywant.  Theideais
that theycommit tothefarm.  ChairR. Bennett stated thatCicero farms hassomething similar to
this idea.  R. Gallagher stated that inaddition tothe12acres that theyown, theyalsohave rented
landandfacilities, suchasaGreenhouse.  Thatwillchange inthefuture.  Hisgoal istobea
certified NewYorkStateFarm Market.  Ifyouhavecertain percent ofyourproducts coming
fromNewYork, youqualify tobeaCertified NewYorkFarm Market.  Asacertified Farm
Market, theywillmonitor andinspect thefarmtocheck forinsecticides being usedandhowwell
theproduce iscleaned, there arestrict standards.  R. Gallagher stated thatheisveryconcerned
about safety asheistheperson whoisliable.  Hehastried toanticipate andaddress anyissues or
concerns, butwelcomes anyfeedback fromthePlanning Board.  Attorney S. Sessler stated that
someoftheitemstheywill include intheSitePlanwillbethehoursofoperation, parking,  
sanitation andwaste water, andkitchen maintenance within theDepartment ofHealth standards.   
Theyareasking theBoard forrecommendation onwhatshould beincluded intheSitePlan, and
ifthereareanyconcerns thatshould beaddressed.  R. Gallagher stated that thisSitePlanwillbe
verysimilar totheonetheysubmitted in2017.  Theywillhaveproduce, bakegoods, specialty
drinks, suchascoffee whichwillallbemoved inside.  J. Brown asked about alimit forcapacity.   
Shehasbeen toother farmmarkets where there arehundreds ofcars.  CEOA. Backus stated that
theparking lotplanwillcover these concerns.  ChairR. Bennett stated that theSitePlanshould
include safety, parking/traffic & overflow parking plan, impervious surfaces, drainage & erosion
control. visibility foringress andegress.  Setbacks ofthebuildings, andhowthetrailswillbe
constructed.   Anyfuture changes beyond theSitePlanwould require returning tothisBoard for
approval.   This isaunique situation, since there ismore interface with thepublic.  CEOA.  
Backus stated thathehasalready received concerns fromtheneighbors regarding thefarm
operation.  Theon-sitehousing andcampers fortheemployees, andmoving operations inside
willneed tobeaddressed.  Attorney S. Sessler stated that there isanewlybuiltbarn that they
would move themarket into.  Thiswould beconsidered afarmmarket, rather thanfarmstand.   
CEOA. Backus stated thatanagricultural Permit wasrequested forthisbarn, withasigned
statement thatitwasforstorage ofagricultural products.  Itwasnever mentioned thatpublic
would begoing intothebarn, thatwould contradict theAgpermit exemption.  Thesigned
Agricultural Building Permit Exemption formwassigned byR. Gallagher with thestatement that
Thisexemption formdoesnotexclude theabove referenced workfromanyZoning, Planning

and/orlocal construction Permits orapprovals oranyPermits required byaCounty, Stateor
Federal Agency.  Attorney S. Sessler stated thatitiscurrently used forstorage, withanticipating
theusewith regard totheSitePlan, turning intopublic access.  CEOA. Backus stated thatwill
openuptheBuilding Code andMercantile aspects aswell.  R. Haak referred tothesketch that
shows thebarn that indicates processing, storage anddistribution, andasked forclarification.   
Attorney S. Sessler stated that thestorage would betheproduct coming fromthefield, the
processing would bethekitchen andthedistribution would becoming toviewandpurchase
items forsale.  R. Haak stated thatontheAgricultural Building Permit Exemption form, under
thedescription, states that “thetermshallnot include habitable space orspaces inwhich
agricultural products areprocessed, treated orpackaged andshallnotbeconstrued tomeana
placeofoccupancy bythegeneral public.    Attorney J. Campbell stated thattheyaregoing to
change useofthebarn.  ThePermit exemption formmaynolonger berelevant with theproposed

6



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thOctober 28, 2019

changes.  There areother components thatwillhave tocomply withchanging fromtheAg
exemption.  CEOA. Backus stated that thebarnwillneed engineered plans andbeinspected to
ensure Code Compliance.  R. Haak asked about thecampers located ontheproperty.  R.  
Gallagher stated that there aretwocampers thatareused foremployees whoworkonthefarmin
trade fortheirhelp.  There are2additional campers thatareontheproperty thatarerestoration
projects.  R. Gallagher asked foratimeframe onwhen hecould expect alistofitems requested
fortheSitePlansubmittal.  CEOA. Backus stated thathewillallow thePlanning Board one
week tosubmit their comments orconcerns, andhewillreview andforward amemo tothe
applicant regarding theSitePlan requirements.  

ChairR. Bennett stated that theSitePlanshould include Safety, parking/traffic & overflow
parking plan, certified stamped engineered plans relating toimpervious surfaces, drainage &  
erosion control, showing noadverse effects. Visibility foringress andegress, lighting andhours
ofoperation.  Setbacks ofthebuildings, howthetrailswillbeconstructed andproposed events.  
Anyfuture changes beyond theSitePlan, would require returning tothisBoard forapproval.    
Once SitePlanhasbeenreviewed byCEOA. Backus andTown council, theapplicant willbe
scheduled onanupcoming Planning Board agenda forreview ofSitePlan.  

Withnofurther questions, ChairR. Bennett asked forMotion toadjourn themeeting at
8:37p.m...  Motion toadjourn: M/2/C (R. Haak/J. Brown) Carried 4-0

Respectfully Submitted,   
Alison Houk, Recording Secretary

7


